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6 December 2018 

Mr Gerard Dwyer 
National Secretary-Treasurer 
Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees Association 
 
By e-mail: general@sda.org.au  

 

Dear Mr Dwyer 

Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees Association 

Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2018 - FR2018/90 

I acknowledge receipt of the financial report for the year ended 30 June 2018 for the Shop, 
Distributive and Allied Employees Association.  The financial report was lodged with the 
Registered Organisations Commission (ROC) on 8 November 2018. 

The financial report has now been filed.  You are not required to take any further action in 

respect of the report lodged. 

Whilst the 2018 report has been filed the following should be addressed in the preparation of the 

next financial report. 

General Purpose Financial Report (GPFR) 

Disclosure of payables in respect of legal costs 

Reporting guideline 16(b) requires a payable in relation to legal costs to be disclosed by litigation 

and by other legal matters.  Note 16 to the GPFR discloses a total figure for this liability item but 

does not distinguish based on the categories indicated above. 

 

Nil activities – not disclosed 

Item 21 of the reporting guidelines states that if any of the activities identified within items 10-20 

of the reporting guidelines have not occurred in the reporting period, a statement to this effect 

must be included either in the financial statements, the notes or in the officer’s declaration 

statement. 

The GPFR contained nil activity information for all prescribed reporting guideline categories 

except the following:  

 Item 14(h) – pay to a person fees or allowances to attend conferences or meetings as a 

representative of the reporting unit  

 

 

Australian Government 

t• Registered Organisations Commission 

http://www.roc.gov.au/


 

   

 

Should you wish to discuss the matters raised in this letter, or if you require further information 

on the financial reporting requirements of the Act, I may be contacted on (03) 9603 0707 or by 

email at ken.morgan@roc.gov.au 

 

Yours faithfully 

 
KEN MORGAN 

Financial Reporting Specialist 

Registered Organisations Commission 

mailto:ken.morgan@roc.gov.au
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NATIONAL PRESIDENT 
Michael Donovan 

s.268 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 

DESIGNATED OFFICER'S CERTIFICATE 

Certificate for year ended 30 June 2018 

NATIONAL SECRETARY 
Gerard Dwyer 

I GERARD DWYER being the National Secretary-Treasurer of the Shop, 
Distributive and Allied Employees Association, certify: 

that the document lodged herewith is a copy of the full report for Shop, 
Distributive and Allied Employees' Association. Annual Financial Report 
- 30 June. 2018 referred to in s.268 of the Fair Work (Registered 
Organisations) Act 2009; and 

that the full report was provided to members via post on or before 
Friday 5 October 2018; and 

that the full report was presented to a meeting of the Committee of 
Management of the reporting unit (National Council) held in the week 
commencing Monday, 29 October 2018. in accordance with s.266 of 
the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. 

Signature of prescribed designated officer ~~ 
Name of prescribed designated officer: GERARD DWYER 

Title of prescribed designated officer: NATIONAL SECRETARY-TREASURER 

Dated: 8 NOVEMBER 2018 
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Operating Report  
For the year ended 30 June 2018 

1. Membership 

. 

2. Committee of Management 

Name Experience 

 
 
 
 

The members of the National Executive present their report together vvith the financial report of Shop, Distributive & Allied 
Employees· Association ('the Association') for the finanoal year ended 30 June 2018 and the auditor's report thereon 

Membership of the Association as at 30 June 2018 was 207,131 (2017: 207,037) 

Persons eligible to do so under the rules of the Association were actively encouraged to join the Association Pursuant to s174 of 
the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 ("RO Acf) and in accordance with Rule 27 of the Assooation, members have the 
nght to resign from the Association by wntten notice to the appropnate Branch of the Association 

The members of the National Executive of the Association at any time dunng or since the end of the financial year are: 

Mr Joseph de Bruyn 
National President 

Mr Michael Donovan 

National Vice President 

Mr Gerard Dwyer 
National Secretary-Treasurer 

Ms Julia Fox 
National Assistant Secretary 

Mr Paul Gnffm 

Ms Barbara Nebart 

Ms Soma Romeo 

Mr Bernie Smith 

Mr Chris Gazenbeek 

Mr Peter O'Keeffe 

National Executive Member smce 1978 
National Secretary-Treasurer 1978-2014 
National Prestdent since 2014 

National Executive Member smce 1996 

National Vice President smce 2014 

National Executive Member since 2005 
National President 2008-2014 
National Secretary-Treasurer since 2014 

National Executive Member since 2016 
National Assistant Secretary since 2016 

National ExecutlVe Member since 1990 

National Executive Member since 2004 

National Executive Member since 2016 

National Execut\Ve Member since 2014 

National ExecutlVe Member since 2014 

National Executive Member since 2014 
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Operating Report (continued) 
3. Affiliations & Directorships  

4. Principal Activities 

5. SDA Report to the Workplace Gender Equality Agency 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Association, through its Branches, is affiliated wtth the Australian Labor Party ("ALP") Delegates were credentialed to vanous 

state and national meetings of the ALP The National Secretary-Treasurer ts a member of the ALP National Executive and the 

Australian Labor Advisory Council. 

The Assooation is afflliated with the Australian Counc tl of Trade Unions ("ACTU") The National Secretary-Treasurer is Senior Vice 

President of the ACTU, and a director of ACTU Trustee companies ACTU Member Connect Pty Ltd and The Union Education 

Foundation Limited. Three o ther representatives of the Association are also members of the ACTU Executive. Officials of the 

Association are active on a range of ACTU Committees, including finance, governance, tax, health and safety, women, vocational 

education and train ing, workers capital, international and industrial legislation 

The Association is afftltated to Union Network International ("UN]"). Various officials of the Association ho ld elected positions within 

UNI. The National Secretary-Treasurer is Vice President of UNI-APRO. The National Secretary-Treasurer ts Pre sident of UNI-APRO 

Commerce Sector. The National Asststant Secretary is Vice President of UNI World Wome n's Committee. 

The Association maintained its industrial awards and agreements and produced a range of publications for its members Dunng the 

year ended 30 June 2018, the Association launched a s1grnf1cant campaign on Customer V1olence & Abuse in Retatl and Fast Food, 

called "No One Deserves A Serve· 

New enterprise agreements were negotiated w ith a range of employers, including but not limite d to, Coles, Debenhams, Ikea, Harris 

Scarfe and a range of warehouse agreements. These agreements all resulted in improved wages and working conditions for the 

employees covered by them. 

The Assooation continues its defence of penalty rates in its m aJor awards and also protects other ent1tlements from attack by 

employers. The Associa t1on also promotes and protects members by participating in a range of le g1slative inquiries and reviews. 

There were no significant changes in the Assoc1ation dunng the financial year in the nature of its activtttes and financial affatrs. At 

30 June 2018, there were 14.7 effective fulHtme e quivalent employees of the National Office of the Association (2017: 13.5) 

Further information is available on the SDA National website a t WVWv.sda org au. 

The Shop, Distributive and Allted Employees' Association, as required by the Workplace Gender Equality Act 2012, lodged its public 

report for the reporting year 2017-2018, to the Workplace Gender Equality Agency, on the 6-" June 2018. The report is avatlable on 

the SDA National website at www sdaorqau 

http://www.sda.org.au/
http://www.sda.org.au/
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Operating Report (continued) 
6. Superannuation Trustees 

7. Information to be provided to Members or General Manager 

• 

• 

• 

    

    

  

Directors: Alternates: 

• • 

• • 

• • 

• • 

• 

• 

Four representat1ves of the Assooation hold pos1t1ons as Directors of the Retail Employees' Superannuat1on Trust ("REST'). Below 

are the directors as at 30 June 2018, along with the nominated alternate Employee Directors. 

Mr Joseph de Bruyn 

Mr Ian Blandthorn 

Mr Michael Tehan (appointed October 2017) 

Ms Juha Fox (appointed January 2018) 

The following REST d1rectors ret1red during the financial year 

Mr Geoff Wllliams (retired October 2017) 

Ms Sue-Anne Burnley (retired January 20181 

Mr Gerard Dwyer 

Mr M1chael Donovan 

Ms Aliscia 0 1 Mauro 

Ms Aliscia 0 1 Mauro 

National Executive Member Mr Paul Gnfhn was a Director o f the Tasplan Superannuation Fund until October 2017. 

In accordance w1th the requirements of subsection 272(5) of the RO Act, the attention o f m embers 1s drawn to the prov1s1ons of 

subsections (1), (2) and (3) of sectton 272, which states as follow s: 

A member of a reporting unit, or the Comm1ss1oner, may apply to the reporting unit for specified prescribed information 

in relation to the reporting urnt to be made available to the person making the application. 

The application must be in writing and must specify the penod within which, and the manner in which, the information is 

to be m ade available. The penod must not be less than 14 days after the applicat ion is gtven to the reporting urnt. 

A reporting urnt must comply w1th an application made under subsection (11 

Dated at Melbourne this 23·d day of August, 2018 

National President 
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Committee of Management Statement  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

We. Gerard Dwyer and Joseph de Bruyn. being two members of the National Executive of the Assoctation. do state on behalf of the 
National Executive and in accordance with a resolution passed by the National Executive on 23''1 August 2018 in relation to the 

accompanying general purpose financial report that, in the opinion of the National Executive 

(a) 

(bl 

(c) 

(dl 

(e) 

(i) 

/" \ ,11, 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(v) 

(vi) 

(f) 

the financial statements and notes set out on pages 11 to 52 comply with the Australian Accounting Standards, 

the financial statements and notes set out on 11 to 52 comply with any other reqwrements imposed by the Reporting 
Guidelines or Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the Fair Work (Registered Orgarnsations) Act 2009 (the RO Act); 

the financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial performance, financial position and cash 
flows of the association for the financial year ended 30 June 2018; 

there are reasonable grounds to believe that the reporting urnt w ill be able to pay its debts as and when they become 
due and payable; and 

during the financial year ended 30 June 2018 and since the end of that year 

meetings of the committee of management were held in accordance with the rules of the Association, 

the financial affairs of the Association have been managed in accordance with the rules of the Association; 

the financial records of the reporting urnt have been kept and maintained in accordance with the RO Act; 

the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept, as far as practicable, in a consistent manner with each of the 
branches of the Assooatlon; and 

to the knowledge of any member of the National Executive. there have been no instances of information sought in any 
request of a member of the reporting unit or Commissioner duly made under section 272 of the RO Act has been 
provided to the member or Commissioner; 

no order for inspection of financial records has been made by the Fa1r Work Commission under section 273 of the RO 
Act 

no revenue has been derived from undertaking recovery of wages activity during the reporting period. 

Dated at Melbourne this 23·ct day of August 2018 

.T:,,~~~ 
National Presidt!nl 

{;!,~ 
Na: nal Secretary-Treasurer 
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Certificate by National Secretary-Treasurer 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

I. Gerard Dwyer. being the officer responstble for keeping the accounting records of the Association certify that as at 30 June 2018 
the number of members of the Association was 207.131 

In my opinion 

(i) the accompanying financial report set out on pages 11 to 52 presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
Assooation as at 30 June 2018; 

(ii) a record has been kept of all monies paid by or collected from members of the Association and all monies so paid or collected 
have been credited to the bank account to which those mornes are to be credited in accordance with the rules of the 
Association: 

(iii) before any expenditure was incurred by the Association, approval of the incurring of the expenditure was obtained in 
accordance with the rules of the Assoo ation: 

(iv) no payments were made out of funds or accounts operated by the Association in respect of compulsory levies raised by the 
Association or voluntary contnbutions collected from members of the Association or other funds, the operation of which is 
reqwred by the rules of the Association for a purpose other than the purpose for which the funds or accounts were operated; 

(v) no loans or other financial benefits other than remuneration in respect of their full time employment with the Association 
were made to persons holding office in the Association, and 

(vi) the Register of Members of the Association was maintained in accordance with the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 

2009. 

Dated at Melbourne this 23·ct day of August 2018 



Shop, Distributive & Allied Employees’ Association 
       Annual Financial Report as at 30 June 2018 

  

Page | 9  

  

Expenditure Report Required Under Subsection 255(2A) 

 

 

18%

9%

62%

1% 10%

2018 - Expenditure as required under s.255(2A) RO Act

Remuneration and other
employment-related costs and
expenses - employees

Advertising

Operating costs

Donations to political parties

Legal costs

23%

4%

57%

0%
16%

2017 - Expenditure as required under s.255(2A) RO Act

Remuneration and other
employment-related costs and
expenses - employees

Advertising

Operating costs

Donations to political parties

Legal costs

The committee of management presents the expenditure report as requJYed under subsection 255(2A) on the Association for the 
year ended 30 June 2018. 

• 

• 

■ 

■ 

• 

• 

• 

■ 

■ 

■ 

Dated at Melbourne this 23-ct day of August 2018 

Joser:~L ~f :-4 VIA.<j ~ 
National President 

( ~~-
National Secretary-Treasurer 
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Officer Declaration Statement 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

  

L Gerard Dwyer, being the National Secretary-Treasurer of the Shop Distributive & Allted Employees' Associat1on, declare that the 

following activities did not occur during the reporting period ending 30 June 2018. 

The reporting unit did not 

agree to receive financial support from another reporting urnt to continue as a going concern (refers to agreement 
re garding financial support not dollar am ount) 

agree to provide financial support to another reporting urnt to ensure they continue as a grnng concern (refers to 
agreement regarding financial support not dollar amount) 

acquire an asset or liability due to an amalgamation under Part 2 of Chapte r 3 of the RO Act, a restructure of the 
branches of an organisation, a determination or revocation by the General Manager, Fair Work Commission 

receive penodic or membership subscnptions 

re ceive revenue via compulsory levies 

receive o ther income via grants or donations 

receive o ther income via revenue from unde rtaking recovery of wages activity 

incur fees as consideration for employers making payroll deductions of m em bership subscnpt1ons 

pay capitation fees to another reporting urnt 

pay compulsory levies 

pay a penalty imposed under the RO Act or the Fair Work Act 2009 

have a receivable with other reporting units 

have a payable to an employer for that employer making payroll de ductions of membership subscriptions 

have a fund or reserve account in equity fo r compulsory levies, voluntary contributions or required by the rules of the 

organisation 

transfer to or Vv1thdraw from a fund or reserve account m equity (other than the general fund in equity), account, asset or 
controlled entity 

have a balance w ithin the general fund in equity 

have another e ntity administer the financial affairs o f the reporting unit 

make a payment to a former re lated party of the reporting unit 

Dated at Melbourne this 23'd day of August, 2018 

a 1onal Secretary-Treasurer 
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Statement of Financial Position   

   

  

  

     

  

  

  

    

    

   

   

    

    

    

    

    

    

   

   

   

   

   

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

   

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

As at 30 June 2018 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Receivables 

Other financial assets 

Total current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 

Investment property 

Employee benefits 

Total non-current assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

Liabilities 

Trade and other payables 

Employee benefits 

Total current liabilities 

Employee benefits 

Total non-current liabilities 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 

Equity 

Retained earnings 

TOT AL EQUITY 

Note 

10 

11 

12 

1.:/ 

15 

17 

16 

17 

17 

The notes on pages 15 to 52 are an integra l part of these financial statements 

2018 2017 

$ $ 

1,253,269 925,867 

620,672 691,153 

26,700,000 27,500,000 

28,573,941 29,117,020 

584,014 646.434 

24,000,000 19,750,000 

467,459 587.644 

25,051.473 20,984.078 

53,625.414 50,101,098 

396.986 318,372 

725,156 768.188 

1.122,142 1,086,560 

27.858 32,079 

27,858 32,079 

1,150.000 1,118,639 

52.475,414 48,982.459 

52.475.414 48,982,459 

52,475,414 48,982,459 
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 
 

   

For the year ended 30 June 2018 

Note 2018 2017 

s $ 

Revenue 

Affiliation fees 21 6,016.150 6,167,282 

Rental income 15(a) 1,470,677 1,412,026 

Total revenue 7,486827 7,579,308 

Other income 

Other income 6 6,057,037 1.763,688 

Total other income 6,057,037 1.763,688 

Total income 1354'.'.864 9,342,996 

Expenditure 

53 Queen St. Melbourne - direct operating expenses 15/a) 602,863 602,080 

ACTU IR Campaign Levy 21 2.,000,000 

Advertising 915Z~3 295,012 

Affiliation fees 21 2.134.393 2,095.039 

Audit fees 22 30,986 30,709 

Delegates expenses 319,774 169,753 

Depreciation 14 1Cl0,2.9G 100,961 

Grants and donations 8 191.250 204,546 

Legal costs 9 1.114,655 l.176,012 

Meeting expenses 278,056 300,373 

Administration expenses 7 181.731 206,790 

Other expenses 13 861,615 519,528 

Personnel expenses 1B 1.806,626 1.632.616 

Travel expenses 195.413 189,028 

Total Expenses 10.732.885 7,522.447 

Result from Operating Activities 2,810,979 1,820,549 

Finance income 
Interest income 12 601.276 6:,2,319 

601 276 6",2,319 

Income tax expense 4(m) 

PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 3.412.255 2.472.868 

Other comprehensive income 

Items that will never be reclassified to profit or loss 

Re-measurem e nt o f defined benefit asset gain/(loss) 17 so.:mo 236,470 

Income tax on other comprehensive income 

Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss 

Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax 80,700 236,470 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 3.492,95", 2,709,338 

The notes on pages 15 to 52 are an integral part of these financial statements 
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Statement of Changes in Equity 

Balance at 1 July 2017 

Total comprehensive income for the period 

Pm fit for the pe riod 

Other comprehensive income 

Re-m easurement of defined benefit asset. nel of tax 

Total comprehensive income for the penod 

Transactions with members of the Association, recognised 
directly in equity 

Balance at 30 June 2018 

Balance at 1 July 2016 

Total comprehensive income for the period 

Profit for the penod 

Other comprehensive income 

Re-measurement of defined benefit asset, net of tax 

To tal comprehensive income for the penod 

Transactions with members of the Association. recognised 
directly \n equity 

Balance at 30 June 2017 

Note 

17 

17 

TJ1e notes on pages 15 to 52 are an integral part of these financial statements 

Retained 
earnings 

$ 

48,982,459 

3.412,255 

80,700 

3.492,955 

52,475,414 

Retained 
earnings 

$ 

46,273,121 

2.472.868 

236,470 

2,709,338 

48,982,459 

Total equity 

$ 

48,982.459 

3.412,255 

80,700 

3,492,955 

52,475,414 

Total equity 

$ 

46,273,121 

2.472,868 

236,470 

2,709,338 

48,982,459 
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Statement of Cash Flows 

    

  

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

For the year ended 30 June 2018 

Note 2018 2017 

$ $ 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Cash receipts from operations 

Cash receipts from other reporting units 19b 8,475,235 7,031,098 

Cash receipts from other sources 1.90 0.490 1.817,739 

Total cash receipts from operations 10.375.725 8.848.887 

Cash payments used in operations 

Cash paid to suppllers (10,135,815) (7,231,627) 

Cash paid to employees (1.055,994) (937,126) 

Cash paid to other reporting units 19/J (201,680) (94,249) 

Total cash payments used in operations {11,393,489) (8,263,002) 

Cash (used ln)/generated from operations (1,017,764) 585,885 

Interest received 1519:245 666,744 

Net cash (used in)/from operating activities )9a (398,519} 1,252,629 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Proceeds/[acquisition) of term deposits 80 0,00 0 (800,000) 

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 14 (56,527) (349,865) 

Acquisition of investment property 15 (39,384) (31,400) 

Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment 21,832 

Net cash from/(used in) investing activities 725,921 (1,181.265) 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Net c ash from/(used in) financ ing activities 

Net mcrease/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 327,402 71.364 

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July 925,867 854,503 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 30 JUNE 10/ 19a 1,253,269 925,867 

The notes on pages 15 to 52 are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 
1. Reporting Entity 

2. Basis of Preparation 
 

 

 

• 

• 

 

 

 

 

(i) 

 

• 

(ii) 

• 

Shop, Distributive & Allied Employees' Association (the 'Association') is an Association domiciled m Australia. The address of 
the Association's registered office is Level 6, 53 Queen Street Melbourne The financial report of the Association for the 
financial year ended 30 June 2018 compnses the National Account and the International Fund. The Associatton is a not­
for-profit entity and primarily is involved m retail trade urnon activities. 

a) Statement of compliance 
The financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been prepared m accordance with Australian Accounting 
Standards ('AASBs') adopted by the Australlan Accounting Standards Board ('MSB') and the Fair Work (Regtstered 
Organisations) Act 2009. 

The finanoal statements were approved by the Nattonal Executive on 23·:1 day of August, 2018. 

b) Basis of measurement 

The financial report is prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following material items in the statement of financial 
positio n: 

investment property is measured at fair value; and 

the defined benefit asset is recognised as the net total of the fair value of plan assets, plus unrecognised past service cost 
and unrecognised actuarial losses, less unrecognised actuarial gains and the present value of the defined benefit 
obllgation 

c) Functional and presentation currency 

The finanoal report is presented in Australian dollars, which is the Association's functional currency. 

d) Use of estimates and judgements 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with AASBs requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumpttons that affect the application of accounting pollcies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised 
in the penod m which the estimate is revised and m any future periods affected 

Judgements 

Information about cntical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amount 
recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes 

Note 15 - Investment property. 

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties 

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment 
within the next financial year are included m the following note 

Note 17 - Employee benefits. 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

2. Basis of Preparation (continued) 
 

 

(ii) 

• 

• 

• 

• 

3.        Changes in accounting policies

4.        Significant accounting policies 

 

d) Use of estimates and judgements (continued) 

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties (continued) 

Measurement of fair values 

A number of the Assooation·s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both finano al 
and non-financial assets and liabilities 

The Assooation has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. Sigrnficant fair value 
measurements are overseen and reviewed regularly, including unobservable inputs and valuation adJustments If third party 
information ts used to measure fair values, the Assoo ation assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support 
the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of AASBs, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which 
such valuations should be classified. S1gniflcant valuation issues are reviewed by the Association's Audit and Risk Committee. 

When measunng the fair value of an asset or a llablltty, the Assoctatton uses market observable data as far as possible. Fatr 
values are categonsed into different levels tn a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as 
follows 

Level 1 - quoted prices (unadiusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or llability, either directly 
(ie as pnces) or indirectly (te. derived from prices) 

Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable marke t data (unobservable inputs) 

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categonsed in different levels of the fair value 
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categonsed in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the 
lowest level input that is significant to the entll'e measurement 

The Assoo ation recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during 
which the change has occurred 

Further informatton about the assumptions made in measunng fair values is included m the followmg notes 

Note 15 - investment property 

When required by accounting standards. comparative figures have been adJusted to conform to changes in presentation for 
the current financial year. 

Adoption of new Australian accounting standards 

No accounting standard has been adopted earlier than the application date stated in the standard 

The accounting policies se t out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements 
by the Association 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

4.      Significant accounting policies (continued)     

(i) 

(ii) 

 

 

 

(i) 

 
 
 

a) Revenue 

Affiliation fees 

Affiliation fees are fees received from the Branches of the Association in accordance with the rules of the Association Such 
fees are referred to as afflliatlon fees in the rules and are calculated as a percentage of gross Branch membership income 
and paid annually in March for the financial year (1 July to 30 June). Revenue (received or receivable) from affiliation fees is 
accounted for on an accrual basis under AASB 118 Revenue standard and is recorded as revenue in the financial year to 
which it relates. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. 

Rental income 

Rental income from investment property is recognised in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the lease. 
Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income, over the term of the lease 

b) Finance Income 

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested. Interest income is recognised as it accrues in profit or loss, 
using the effective interest method. 

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis as either finance income or finance cost depending on whether 
foreign currency movements are in a net gain or net loss position. 

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest rate basis except for debt instruments other than those financial 
assets that are recognised at fair value through profit or loss The effective interest method is a method of calculating the 
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant penod. The effective interest rate 
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected llfe of the financtal asset, or, when 
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

c) Gains 

Sale of assets 

Gains and losses from disposal of assets are recognised when control of the asset has passed to the buyer. 

d) Affiliation fees and levies 

Affiliation fees and levies are recognised on an accrual basis and recorded as an expense in the year it relates to which 1t 

relates. 

e) Employee benefits 

Defined benefit p lans 

The Association's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the 
amount of future benefi t that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and 
deducting the fmr value of any plan assets. 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

e) Employee benefits (continued) 

Defined benefit plans (continued) 

The calculation of defined beneftt obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the proJected unit credit 
method. When the calculat1on results m a potent1al asse t for the Assoc1at1on, the recognised asset 1s ltm1ted to the present 
value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to 
the plan To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable mirnmum funding 
requirements. 

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liablllty, wh1ch comprise actuarial gains and losses. the return on plan assets 
(excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest). are recognised 1mmediately in other 
comprehensive income. The Association determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability 
(asset) for the penod by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the 
annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit 
liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments Net interest expense and other expenses 
related to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss. 

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit tha t relates to past 
service or the gain or loss on curtatlment ts recognised immediately m profit or loss. The Associatlon recognises gains and 
losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs. 

Othe r long-term employee benefits 

The Association's net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than defined benefit superannuation funds 
is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and pnor periods plus 
related on-costs; that benefit is discounted to de termine its present value. and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. 
The discount rate 1s the y1eld at the reporting date on Austrahan Corporate bonds that have matunty dates approximating 
the terms of the Association's obligations in which the benefits are expected to be paid 

Short-term be nefits 

Liabilities for employee benefits for wages, salanes and annual leave represent present obligations resulting from employees· 
services provided to reporting date and are calculated at undiscounted amounts and expensed based on remuneration wage 
and salary rates that the Association expects to pay as at reporting date including related on-costs, such as workers 
compensation insurance and payroll tax. Amounts that are expected to be settled beyond 12 months are measured in 
accordance with long term benefits 

f) Leases 

Lease payme nts 

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in proftt or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 
Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease. 

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the reduction of 
the outstanding liability The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant 
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the llabihty. 

Determining whether an arra ngem e nt contains a lease 

At inception of an arrangement, the Association determ1nes whether such an arrangement 1s or contains a lease. This will 
be the case if the following two criteria are met 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(ii) 

• 

• 

 

 

(i) 

 
 

f) Leases (continued) 

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease (continued) 

the fulfllment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets: and 

the arrangement contains a right to use the asset(s) 

At inception or upon reassessment of the arrangement, the Association separates payments and other consideration 
required by such an arrangement into those for the lease and those for other elements on the basis of their relative fair 
values. If the association concludes for a finance lease that it is impracticable to separate the payments reliably, an asset and 
a l1ab1lity are recognised at an amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset Subsequently the liability 1s reduced as 
payments are made and an imputed finance charge on the liability 1s recognised using the Assoetation·s incremental 
borrrn,vmg rate 

g) Cash 

Cash is recognised at its nominal amount Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with bank. 
other short-term highly l1qu1d investments with ongmal matunty of 3 months or less that are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash and subJect to 1ns1gnificant nsk of changes in value and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within 
short-term borrowings in current liabiltties on the statement of financial position 

h) Financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial ltabiltties are recognised when the Association becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to 
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, 
on initial recognition Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss are recognised 1mmed1ately in profit or loss 

Non-derivative financial assets 

The Association initially recognises receivables and deposits on the date that they originate. All other financial assets 
(including assets designated at fair value through profit and loss) are recognised initially on the trade date at which the 
Association becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

The Assoetation derecognises a finanetal asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset exptre, or it 
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction 1n which substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created 
or retained by the Association is recognised as a separate asset or liability. 

Fmanetal assets and liabtltttes are offset and the net amount presented m the financial position when and only when the 
Assoetation has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle 
the liability simultaneously. 

The Association has the following non-denvattve finanetal assets he ld-to matunty fmancial assets. recetvables, and cash and 
cash equivalents. 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

h) Financial instruments (continued) 

Non-derivative financial assets (continued) 

Held-to-maturity financial assets 

Held-to-maturity financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition held-to-maturity financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method, less any impairment losses (see note 41(i)) 

Held to maturity financial assets comprise Term Deposits held with the Commonwealth Bank of Australia (see note 12) 

Receivables 

Receivables are fmancial assets \Nlth fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market Such assets 
are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition 
receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any im pairment losses (see note 4l(i)) 

Receivables compnse accrued income, prepayments and sundry debtors (see note 11). 

Non-derivative financial liabilities 

The Association's other financial liabilities are recognised initially on the trade date which is the date that the Association 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument 

The Association derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obllgations are discharged or cancelled or expire 

Fmancial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of finanoal position when, and only 
when, the Association has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously. 

The financial liabilities are recognised at fair value plus any dtrectly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 
recogrnt1on these fmancial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Other financial 
liabilities compnse trade and other payables 

Share capital 

The Association is an unincorporated registered organisation under the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 and 
does not have share capital 

Foreign currency transactio ns 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Association at exchange rates at the dates 
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated m foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated 
to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the 
difference between amortised cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the period. adjusted for effective interest 
and payments dunng the penod, and the amortised cost m foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of 
the year. 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(iv) 

 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

h) Financial instruments (continued) 

Foreign currency transactions (continued) 

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated to the 
functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items ma foreign 
currency that are measured in terms of historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. 

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised 1n profit or loss 

i) Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

Contingent habihties and contingent assets are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Position but are reported in the 
relevant notes. They may arise from uncertainty as to the existence of a liability or asset or represent an existtng habihty or 
asset m respect of which the amount cannot be reliably measured. Contingent assets are disclosed when settlement is 
probable but not virtually certain, and contingent habilities are disclosed when settlement 1s greater than remote. 

j) Property, Plant and Equipment 

Recognition and measurement 

]terns of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset 

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful hves, they are accounted for as separate items 
of property, plant and equipment 

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and eqwpment is de termined by companng the proceeds from 
disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and 1s recogrnsed net w1thm other income/other 
expenses m profit or loss 

Subsequent costs 

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment ts recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it 
is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Association and its cost can be 
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of 
property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is calculated over the deprectable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, 
less its residual value. Depreciation is recogrnsed m profit or loss on a strmght-lme or d1mirnshmg value over the estimated 
useful lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment, to most closely reflect the expected pattern of 
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the 
lease term and the1r useful lives unless it 1s reasonably certain that the Association will obtain ownership by the end of the 
lease term. 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

(iii) 

 

• 

• 

• 

(iv) 

(i) 

j) Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 

Depreciation (continued) 

The estimated useful lives in the current and comparat1Ve periods are as follows 

2018 2017 
Leasehold improvements 5-20 years 5-20 years 

Fixtures and fittlngs 4-20 years 4-20 years 

Motor vehicles 8 years 8 years 

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate. 

De -recognition 

An item of land, buildings, plan t and equipment is derecogrnsed upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from its use or disposal Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and 
eqwpment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is 
recognised m the profit and loss. 

k) Investment property 

lnvestment property is property held e ither to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for sale in 
the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. 
lnvestment property is measured at cost on initial recognition and subsequently at fair value with any change therein 
recognised m profit or loss Refer to note 15(b) for details of determination of fair value. 

Cost mcludes expenditure that is d1rectly attnbutable to the acqwsition of the mvestment property. The cost of self­
constructed investment property includes the cost of materials and d1rect labour. any other costs directly attributable to 
bnnging the investment property to a working condition for their mtended use and capitalised borrowing costs 

Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment property (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from disposal 
and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in profit and loss. When an investment property that was previously 
classified as property, plant and equipment is sold, any related amount included in the revaluation reserve is transferred to 
retamed earnings When the use of a property changes such that it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment. its fair 
value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent accountmg 

l) Impairment 

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each financial reporting date to determine 
whether there is ob1ective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if obiective evidence indicates that a loss 
event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset. and that the loss event has a negative effect on the estimated 
future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably. Objective evidence that fmancial assets (including receivables) 
are impaired can mclude default or dellnquency by a debtor, restructunng of an amount due to the Assooatton on terms 
the Association would not consider otherwise, mdications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy, or the disappearance 
of an active market for a security. 

Financ ial assets at am ortised cost 

The Association considers evidence of impairment for receivables at both a specific asset and collective level. All individually 
significant receivables are assessed for speofic impairment. and those found not to be specifically impaired are then 
collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Receivables that are not individually 
significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together those with similar nsk charactenstics. 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(i) 

(ii) 

l) Impairment (continued) 

Financial assets at amortised cost (continued) 

ln assessing collective impairment the Association uses historical trends of the probabiltty of default, timing of recoveries 
and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management's judgement as to whether current economic and credit 
conditions are such that actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends 

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its 
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's onginal effective interest 
rate Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account against receivables or held-to-matunty 
investment securities lnterest on the impaired asset continues to be recognised. When a subsequent event (e.g. repayment 
by a debtor) causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss 1s reversed through profit 
or loss. 

Non-financial assets 

The carrying amounts of the Association's non-financial assets. other than investment property. are reviewed at each 
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment If any such indication exists. the asset's 
recoverable amount is estimate d. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating 
unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount A CGU is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that 
largely are independent from other assets and groups. lmpairment losses are recognised m profit or loss. The recoverable 
amount of an asset or CCU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. ln assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. 

lmpatrment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has 
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine 
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is only reversed to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed 
the carrying amount that would have been determined, ne t of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been 
recognised. 

m) Taxation 

The Association is exempt from income tax under section 50.1 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 however still has 
obligation for Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT) and the Goods and Services Tax (GST) 

Revenue. e xpenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except where the amount 
of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authonty In these circumstances. the GST is recognised as part of the 
cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense. Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST 
excluded, as the Association reports to the ATO for GST on a cash-basis. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or 

payable to. the ATO is included as a current asset or liability in the balance sheet 

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from 
investing and financing activtties which are recoverable from. or payable to, the ATO are classified as operating cash flows. 

n) Provisions 

A provision 1s recognised if. as a result of a past event, the Associatio n has a present legal or constructive obligation that 

can be estimated reliably. and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

o) Fair value measurement 

A number of the Assoetation's accounting poltcies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both finanetal 
and non-financial assets and liabilities Also, faff values of ftnancial instruments measured at amortised cost are disclosed in 
Note 25a 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement ts based on the presumption that the 
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either 

In the princtpal market for the asset or liability, or 
In the absence of a pnncipal market. in the most advantageous market for the asset or liabtlity 

The pnncipal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Association The fmr value of an asset or a 
liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming 
that market partiopants act m their economic best interest. 

A fatr value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic 
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset 
in its highest and best use. 

The Assooation uses valuation techniques that are appropnate m the c\Tcumstances and for which sufflctent data are 
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable 
inputs 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the finanC\al statements are categorised within the 
faff value hierarchy, descnbed as follows, based on the lowest level mput that is significant to the fair value measurement as 
a whole 

Level 1-0uoted (unadJustedl market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
Level 2- Valuatlon techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fmr value measurement 1s dffectly 
or mdlTectly observable 
Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is sigrnficant to the fair value measurement is 
unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised m the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Association determines 
whether transfers have occurred be tween Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting penod. External valuers are 
involved for valuation of significant assets, such as investment properties Selection criteria include market knowledge, 
reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained. For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the 
Association has dete rmined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, charactenstics and risks of the asset or 
liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy 

p) Segment reporting 

An operating segment is a component of the AssoC\ation that engages in business activities from whtch it may earn revenues 
and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the other Association's other 
components. All operating segments' operating results are reviewed regularly by the Association's office holders to make 
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance, and for which discrete financial 
information is available. 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(i) 

• 

• 

 

q) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted 

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual penods beginning after 1 
J uly 2017, and have not been applled in preparing these financial statements. Those wh1ch may be relevant to the Association 
are set out below The Association does not plan to adopt these standards early and the extent of the 1mpact on the 
Assoc1ation has not yet been determined 

AASB 9 Financial Instruments 

AASB 9 Financial Instruments is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early adoption 
permitted. The Association currently plans to apply AASB 9 initially on 1 July 2018. 

The actual 1mpact of adopting AASB 9 on the Association's financial statements in 2018 is not known and cannot be 
reasonably estimated because it will be dependent on the financial instruments that the Association holds and economic 
condttions at that time, as well as accounting elections and Judgements that it will make in the future The new standard will 
require the Association to revise its accounting processes and internal controls related to reporting finano al instruments and 
these changes are not yet complete. However, the Assoication has performed a preliminary assessment of the potential 
impact of the adoption of MSB 9 based on its positions at 30 June 2018 and does not expect a matenal impact 

Classification - Financial assets 

AASB 9 contains a new classification and measurement approach for financial assets that reflects the business model in 
which assets are managed and their cash flow characteristics. MSB 9 contains three principal classification categories for 
financial assets measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive 1ncome (FVOCI) and fair value through 
profit or loss (FVTPL) The standard ellminates the existing AASB 139 categories of held to maturity, loans and receivables 
and available for sale. Under AASB 9, denvatives embedded in contracts where the host is a financial asset in the scope of 
the standard are never b1furcated. Instead, the hybrid financial instrument as a whole is assessed for classification. 

Based on its prellminary assessment, the Association does not believe that the new class1flcation requirements, if they had 
been applied at 30 June 2018, would have had a matenal impact on its accounting for receivables that are managed on a 
fair value basis 

Impairment - Financial assets and contract assets 

AASB 9 replaces the 'incurred loss' model in AASB 139 with a forward-look1ng 'expected credit loss' (ECL) model. This will 
require considerable Judgement as to how changes in economic factors affect ECLs, which will be determined on a 
probab1lity-weighted basis 

The new impairment model will apply to financial assets measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, except for investments in 

eqwty instruments, and to contract assets. Under MSB 9, loss allowances will be measured on either of the follow1ng bases 

12-month ECLs: These are ECLs that result from possible default events within the 12 months after the reporting date 
and 
Lifetime ECLs: These are ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument 

Lifetime ECL measurement applies if the credit nsk of a financial asset at the reporting date has increased significantly since 
irntial recogrntion and 12-month ECL measurement applies if it has not An entity may dete rmine that a finano al asset's 
credit risk has not increased significantly if the asse t has low credit risk at the reporting date. However, lifetime ECL 
measurement always applies for trade receivables and contract assets without a significant financing component: an entity 
may choose to apply this pohcy also for trade receivables and contract assets Wlth a significant financing component. 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(i) 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

(ii) 

 

q) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (continued) 

MSB 9 financial Instruments (continued) 

The AssoClation believes that impairment losses are not likely to increase or become more volatile for assets in the scope of 
the AASB 9 impairment model The Association's preliminary assessment indicated that application of AASB 9's impairment 

requirements at 30 June 2018 would probably have resulted in no change in loss allowances at that date compared with 
impairment losses recognised under AASB 139. However, the Association has not yet finalised the impairment 
methodologies that it will apply under AASB 9. 

Classification - Financial liabilities 

AASB 9 largely retains the existing requirements in AASB 139 for the classification of finanClal liabilities However, under AASB 

139 an fair value changes of liabilities designated as at FVTPL are recognised in profit or loss. whereas under AASB 9 these 
fair value changes are generally presented as follows 

the amount of change in the fatr value that is attnbutable to changes in the credit risk of the liability is presented in other 
comprehensive income; and 

the remaining amount of change in the fair value is presented in profit or loss 

The Association has not designated any financial liabilities as at FVTPL and the Association has no current intention to do 
so. The AssoC\ation's preliminary assessment did not indicate any material impact if AASB 9's requirements on the 
classification of financial liabilities were applied at 30 June 2018. 

Disclosures 

AASB 9 will require extensive new disclosures, in particular about hedge accounting, credit risk and ECLs The Association's 
preliminary assessment included an analysis to identify data gaps against current processes and the Association plans to 
implement the system and controls changes that it believes will be necessary to capture the reqwred data. 

Transition 

Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of AASB 9 will generally be applied retrospectively, except as 
described below 

The Association plans to take advantage of the exemption allowing it not to restate comparative information for pnor 
periods Wlth respect to classification and measurement (including impairment) changes. Differences in the carrying 
amounts of financial assets and financial liablhtles resulting from the adoption of AASB 9 will generally be recognised in 
retained earnings and reserves as at 1 January 2018 

The following assessments have to be made on the basts o f the facts and mcumstances that exist at the date of initial 
application 

The determination of the business model within which a financial asset is held. 

The designation and revocation of previous designations of certain finanClal assets and financial liabilities as measured 
at FVTPL 

MSB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

AASB 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognised It 
replaces existing revenue recognition guidance, including AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 111 Construction Contracts and AASB 
Interpretation 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

• 

• 

q) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (continued) 

MSB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued) 

AASB 15 is e ffective for annual reporting penods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. with early adoption permitted The 
Association currently plans to apply AASB 16 irntially on 1 July 2019 

The Assooation has completed an initial assessment of the potential impact of the adoption of AASB 15 on its financial 
statements. 

Affiliation fees 

Affiliation fees are accounted for on an accrual basis under AASB 118 Revenue standard and is recorded in the financial year 
to which it relates Based on its assessment, the Assooation does not expect the apphcation of AASB 15 to have a significant 
impact on its financial statements for afflhation fees. 

Rental income 

Rental income from investment property ts recogrnsed in profit or loss on a straight lme basis over the term of the lease. 
Based on its assessment, the Association does not expect the application of AASB 15 to have a sigrnftcant impact on its 
financial statements for rental income 

Transition 

The Assooation plans to adopt AASB 15 in its financial statements for the year ending 30 June 2020, using the retrospective 
approach As a result the Association plans to apply all of the requirements of AASB 15 to each comparative period presented 

and ad Just its fmanoal statements 

The Association plans to use the practical expedients for completed contracts. This means that completed contracts that 
began and ended in the same comparative reporting penod, as well as those that are completed contracts at the beginning 
of the earliest period presented. wtll not be restated. 

AASB 16 Leases 

AASB 16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises a right-of-use asset 
representing its nght to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. 
There are optional exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low-value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the 
current standard - 1.e. lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases. 

The Association has started an mitial assessment of the potential impact on its financial statements. So far. the most 
significant impact identified is that the Association will recognise new assets and liabilities for its operating leases In addition, 
the nature of expenses related to those leases will now change as AASB 16 replaces the straight-hne operating lease expense 
with a depreciation charge for nght-of-use assets and interest expense or lease liabilities. The Association has not yet decided 

whether it will use the optional exemptions. No significant impact is expected for the Association's finance leases. 

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease 

On transition to AASB 16, the Association can choose whether to 

apply the AASB 16 definition of a lease to all its contracts or 

apply a practical expedient and not reassess whether a contract is. or contains. a lease 

The Assooation is assessing whether to apply the practical expedient and the potential impact on its financial statements, 
and whether this will affect the number of contracts identified as leases on transition 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(iii) 

• 

• 

 

 

 

 

5.      Events after the reporting period 

q) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (continued) 

AASB 16 Leases (continued) 

As a lessee. the Association can either apply the standard using a: 

retrospective approach; or 

modified retrospective approach with optional practical expedients 

The lessee applies the election consistently to all of its leases 

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early adoption is permitted for entities that 
apply AASB 15 at or before the date of initial application of AASB 1 on 1 January 2019. The Association has not yet determined 
which transition approach to apply 

The Association has not yet quantified the impact on its reported assets and liabilities of the adoption of AASB 16. The 
quantitative effect will depend on, inter aha, the transition method chosen. the extent to which the Association uses the 
practtcal expedients and recognition exempttons. and any additional leases that the Association enters into . The 
Association expects to disclose its transition approach and quantitative information before adoption 

r) Financial risk management 

The Association has exposure to the following risks from their use of financial instruments 

a) 

b) 
c) 

Credit risk 
Liquidity nsk 
Market nsk 

d) Operational risk 

Risk Management Framework 

The National Executive has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework 
Risk management pollcies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Association. to set appropriate risk 
limits and controls. and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed 
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Association's activities The Association, through its training and 
management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all 
employees understand thetr roles and obligations. 

A detailed assessment of the Association's exposure to the above risks is included in note 23. 

There has not ansen m the interval be tween the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item, transaction or 
event of a matenal and unusual nature ltkely, m the opirnon of the officer holders of the Association. to affect sigrnflcantly 

the operations of the Association, the results of those o perations, or the state of affairs of the Association m future financial 
years. 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued 
6. Other Income 

 
7.  Administration expenses 

   

 
8. Grants or donations 

  

 

 
 
 
 

Investment property - fair value increment 

ACTU trust distributions 

SDA Branch reimbursements 

Legal costs awarded 

REST dlTector's fees 

Other income 

lnformation technology support 

Office expenses 

Pnnting & photocopier 

Subscriptions 

Telecommunication 

Total administration expense 

Crants: 

Total pald that were $1,000 or less 

Total paid that exceeded $1,000 

Donations 

Total paid that were $1,000 or less 

Total pa1d that exceeded $LOGO 

Total grants or donations 

Note 

15 

21 

21 

c.:l 

2018 

$ 

4,210,616 

99,842 

1688,609 

54,795 

3,175 

6,057,037 

2018 

$ 

34 ,825 

60,878 

22,768 

39,138 

24.122 

181,731 

2018 

$ 

191,250 

191,250 

2017 

$ 

1,218,600 

149,186 

224,625 

45,250 

126,027 

1,763,688 

2017 

$ 

34,324 

71,976 

33.133 

43,653 

23,704 

206,790 

2017 

$ 

204,546 

204,546 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
9.     Legal costs 

   

10. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

   

11. Receivables 

 

 
12. Other Financial Assets 

 

 
 

Litigation 

Other legal matters 

Total legal costs 

Cash at bank 

Cash management account 

Short term depostts 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

Other receivables: 

Accrued interested income 

Sundry debtors 

Prepayments 

Total other receivables 

Total receivables net of impairment provision 

Term depo~its 

Total other current assets 

2018 

$ 

289.478 

825.177 

1,114,655 

2018 

$ 

320.566 

873J4 1 

59,562 

1,253,269 

2018 

$ 

93,972 

413,073 

113,627 

620.672 

620,672 

2018 

$ 

26,700,000 

26,700,000 

2017 

$ 

120,54'1. 

1,055,471 

1,176,012 

2017 

$ 

98.468 

768,833 

58,566 

925,867 

2017 

$ 

111,941 

515,478 

63,734 

691,153 

691,153 

2017 

$ 

27,500,000 

27,500.000 

Term deposits have stated interest rates of 2.37 to 2.54 percent (2017 2.34 to 2.45 percent) and mature in 120 days or more The 
Association's exposure to credit and interest rate risk is disclosed in note 23. 

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Association received in terest income of $601,276 (2017 $652,319) in respect of financial 
assets not at fair value through profit and loss 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
13.  Other Expenses 

 
14. Property, plant and equipment 

Consultants and professional services 

Information communications technology 

Motor vehicle running costs 

Other 

Total other expenses 

Cost 

Balance at 1 July 2017 

Acquisitions 

Disposals 

Balance at 30 June 2018 

Balance at 1 July 2016 

Acquisitions 

Impairments 

Balance at 30 June 2017 

Depreciation and impairment losses 

Balance at 1 July 2017 

Depreciation expense for the year 

Disposals 

Balance at 30 June 2018 

Balance at 1 July 2016 

Depreciation expense for the year 

Impairments 

Balance at 30 June 2017 

Carrying amounts 

At 1 July 2017 

At 30 June 2018 

At 1 J uly 2016 

At 30 June 2017 

Furniture and Motor 
fittings Vehicles 

$ $ 

244,966 l3Z,494 

51,555 

(6,176) 136,0::,1) 

290,345 96,463 

216,859 91,455 

92,268 41,039 

(64,161) 

244,966 132,494 

122,450 53,6.41 

27,946 15,436 

(5,862) 117,682,) 

144,534 51,389 

151,852 31,292 

34.759 22,349 

(64,161) 

122,450 53,641 

122,516 78.853 

145,811 45,074 

65,007 60,163 

122,516 78,853 

2018 2017 

$ $ 

437,480 348,805 

380,095 120,000 

30,946 34,107 

13,094 16,616 

861,615 519,528 

Leasehold Total Improvements 

$ $ 

692,038 1,069.498 

4,972 56,527 

(42,207) 

697,010 1,083,818 

475,480 783,794 

216,558 349,865 

(64,161) 

692,038 1,069,498 

246,973 4 33,064 

56,908 100,290 

(23,550) 

303,881 499,804 

203,120 386,264 

43,853 100,961 

(64,161) 

246,973 423,064 

445,065 646,434 

393,129 584,014 

272,360 397,530 

445,065 646,434 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
15.       Investment Property 
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount 

2018 2017 

$ $ 

Property 

Opening balance as at 1 July 19,750,000 18,500,000 

Capital Improvements 39,384 31,400 

Net gain from fair value adjustment 4,210,616 1,218,600 

Closing balance as at 30 June 24,000,000 19.750,000 

Investment property compnses a commercial property located at 53 Queen Street, Melbourne The Association retains 
possession of levels 6 and 7 as its registered head office and leases the remaining floors to third parties Each of the leases 
contains an initial non-cancellable penod of a m1rnmum of three years. with fixed percentage annual rent increases. Some 
lease incentives were paid towards tenancy ht-outs and are being amortised over the period of the leases on a straight line 
basis. Subsequent renewals are negotiated with the lessee and on average renewal periods are 4 years. No contingent rents 
are paid Further information about these leases are contained in Note 20. 

Rental income earned and received from the investment property dunng the year was $1,470,677 (2017 $ 1,412,026) 

Direct expenses incurred in relation to the investment properties that generated rental income dunng the year was $602,863 

12017:$ 602.080). During the year and as at year-end, no restrictions on the realisability of investment property or the 
remittance of income and proceeds of disposal were present. The SDA does not have any contractual obligations to purchase, 
construct or develop investment property or for repairs, maintenance or enhancements. 

(b) Measurement of fair value 

(i) Fair value hierarchy 

The fair value of investment property was determined by external, independent property valuers, having appropnate 
recogrnsed professional qualifications and recent experience in the location and category of the property being valued. The 
independent valuers provide the fair value of the Association's investment property at least every two years. In years where 
external, independent valuations are not obtained, these are substituted with Assoo ation management performing internal 
valuations utilising publicly available market data for properties with similar characteristics to the Association's investment 
property. 

The fair value measurement for investment property of $24,000,000 was determined at 30 June 2018 by Gary Longden, 
Director and certified practising valuer o f M3 Property P/L, a registered independent appraiser having an appropriate recognised 
professional qualification from Australian Property Institute and recent experience in the location and category of the property 
being valued. The faff value measurement has been categonsed as a Level 3 fair value based on the inputs to the valuation 
technique used (see Note 4(o)) 

(ii) Level 3 fair value - valuation technique and sign ifican t unobservable inputs 

The following shows the valuation technique used in measuring the fair value of investment property, as well as the significant 
unobservable inputs used. 

Valuation techniques. Discounted cash flow approach (2018), Discounted cash flow approach (2017) 

Discounted cash flow approach The discounted cash flow approach involves formulating a projection o f net income over a 
specified honzon. typically ten years. and discounting this cash flow including the proJected terminal value at the end of the 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
15.           Investment Property (continued) 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

16.           Trade and Other payables 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(b) Measurement of fair value (continued) 

(ii) Level 3 fair value - valuation technique and significant unobservable inputs (continued) 

proJectton penod at an appropriate rate. The present value of this discounted cash flow represents the Market value of the 
property. 

Significant unobservable inputs. 
2018 Discount rate 7.00%, 

2017: Discount rate 7.00%. 

Inter-relat1onsh1p between key unobservable inputs and fair value measurement 

The estimated fair value would increase (decrease) if 

2018 The discount rate was lower (higher), 

2017: The discount rate was lower (htgher) 

Payables to o ther reporting units 

SDA Victona 

Total trade payables 

Other legal matters 

PAYG withholding tax 

Tenant security deposits 

Other 

Total other payables 

Total trade and other payables are expected to be settled in: 

No more than 12 months 

More than 12 months 

Total trade and other payables 

2018 2017 

$ $ 

4,258 6,293 

4,258 6,293 

58,034 99,448 

32,946 31,526 

56,862 55,866 

244,886 125,239 

392,728 312,079 

396,986 318,372 

396,986 318,372 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
17. Employee Benefits 

Current liability 

Office holders 

Liabihty for long service leave 

Liability for annual leave 

Separation and redundancies 

Other 

Employees other than office holders 

Llabil1ty for long service leave 

Liability for annual leave 

Separation and redundancies 

Other 

Non-current liability 
Employees other than office holders 

Liability for long-service leave 

Non-current asset 
Office holders and other employees 

Present value of funded obligations 

Fair value of plan assets - funded 

Recognised (asset) for defined benefit obligations 

2018 

$ 

1%472 

52,392 

208,864 

247.493 

268.799 

516.292 

725,156 

27,858 

27,858 

.2,730,148 

(3,197,607) 

(467,459) 

2017 

$ 

135,570 

41,872 

177,442 

338,547 

252.199 

590.746 

768,188 

32.079 

32,079 

2.728.898 

(3,316,542) 

{587,644) 

The Association makes contributions to the S0A (Victoria Branch) benefit superannuation plan, a sub-plan of the Retail Employees· 

Superannuation Trust, that provide defined benefit amounts for office holders and other employees upon retirement The 
Association ]las determined that in accordance with the terms and conditions of the defined benefit plans, and m accordance with 
statutory requirements (such as minimum funding requirements) of the plan of the respective jurisdictions, the present value of 
refunds or reductions in future contributions is not lower than the balance of the fair value of the plan assets less the total present 
value of obligations. As such, no decrease in the defined benefit asset is necessary at 30 June '2018 (30 June 2017 no decrease in 
the defined benefit asset) 

The following tables analyse plan assets, present value of defined benefit obligations, expense recognised in profit or loss, actuanal 
assumptions and other information for the plan 

Movements in the net asset for defined benefit obligations recognised in the statement of financial 
position: 

Net (assetJ/1\ability for defmed benefit obligations at 1 July 

Contributions paid into the plan 

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income - actuarial 

Expenses recognised in statement of comprehensive income 

Net (asset)/liability for defined benefit 01Jllgat1ons at 30 June 

2018 

$ 

(587644) 

(80,700) 

200.885 

(467,459) 

2017 

$ 
(356,591) 

(90,327) 

(236,470) 

95,744 

(587,644) 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
17. Employee Benefits (continued) 

 
 
 

Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligations 

Defined benefit obligations at 1 July 

Current service cost 

Interest cost 

Actuarial losses/(gams) recognised in other com prehensive income (see below) 

Benefits paid by the plan 

Taxes, premium & expenses paid 

Defined benefit obligations at 30 June 

All benefits are vested at the end of the reporting period. 

Movement in the present value of plan assets 

Fair value of plan assets at 1 July 

Expected return on plan assets at discount rate 

Actuarial (lossesJ/gams recognised in other comprehensive ino:ime (see below) 

Contributions paid 

Benefits paid 

Taxes and expenses 

Fair value of plan assets at 30 June 

Expense recognised in profit or loss 

Current service costs 

Net interest costs 

Re-measurements of net defined benefit liability/asset 

Loss/(Gain) on defined benefit obligation 

!Gain)/Loss on assets 

Recognised in other comprehensive (income}/expense 

2018 

$ 

2,728,898 

217,272 

62.551 

39,645 

(293,902) 

(24,3i6J 

2,730,148 

2018 

$ 

3,316,542 

78,938 

120,345 

(293,902) 

(24,316) 

3,197,607 

2018 

$ 

217,272 

(16,387) 

200,885 

2018 

$ 

39,645 

(120 ,345) 

{80,700) 

2017 

$ 

2.705,058 

.107,300 

65,056 

(20,116) 

189.880) 

(38,520) 

2,728,898 

2017 

$ 

3,061,649 

76,612 

216,354 

90,327 

189.880) 

(38,520) 

3,316,542 

2017 

$ 

107,300 

(11,556) 

95,744 

2017 

$ 

120,116) 

(216,354) 

{236,470} 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

17. Employee Benefits (continued) 
Actuarial gains (and losses) recognised in other comprehensive income 

Cumulative amount at 1 July 

Recognised during the period 

Cumulative amount at 30 June 

2018 

$ 

109,094 

80,700 

189,794 

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total fund assets are as follows: 

Australian Equity 

International Equity 

Fixed Income 

Property 

Cash 

Other 

Actuarial assumptions 

Pnncipal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages) 

Discount rate at 30 June 

Future salary increases 

Sensitivity analysis 

2018 

17% 

23% 

6% 

9% 

8% 

37% 

2018 

3.75% 

400% 

2017 

$ 

(127,376) 

236,470 

109,094 

2017 

19% 

29% 

6% 

11% 

6% 

29% 

2017 

3.75% 

400% 

The calculation of the defined benefit obligation is sensittve to the assumptions set out above. The following table summarises 
how the impact on the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period would have increased (decreased) as a result 
of a change in the respective assumptions by one percent 

Additional DBO for a 1% decrease in the discount rate 

Reduction in 080 for a 1% increase in the discount rate 

2018 

$ 

146,951 

128,802 

2017 

$ 

173,554 

94,588 

The above senS1tlvities are based on the average duration of the benefit obligation determined by the actuary as at 30 June 2018 

and are applied to adJust the defined benefit obltgation at the end of the reporting period for the assumptions concerned. Whtlst 
the analysts does not take account of the full distnbution of cash flows expected under the plan. it does provide an approximation 
to the sensitivity of the assumptions shown 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
17. Employee Benefits (continued) 

18. Personnel Expenses 

 
 
 

Historical information 

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 

$ $ $ $ $ 

Present value of the defined 2,730,148 2,728,898 2.705.058 2,375.594 2,463.350 
benefit obligation 

fair value of plan assets - (31 97607) (3,316.542) (3,061,649) (3,000,982) (2,934.258) 
funded 

Recognised (asset)/liability for {467,459) (587,644) (356,591) (625,388) (470,908) 
defined benefit obligation 

Funding 

The plan is fully funded by the Association. The funding requirements are based on the plan fund's actuanal measurement 

framework set out in the funding policies of the plan. The funding is based on a separate actuanal valuation for funding purposes 

for which the assumptlons may differ from the assumptions above. Employees are not required to contribute to the plan 

The Association expects to contribute NIL (2017 $90.327) to its defined benefit superannuation fund dunng the year ended ':,O 

June 2019 as it is is currently on a contributions holiday 

Holders of office: 

Wages and salanes 

Superannuation (including expenses related to defined benefit) 

Leave and o ther entitlements 

Separation and redundancies 

Other employee expenses 

Total employee expenses - holders of office 

Employees other than office holders: 

Wages and s:l.lanes 

Superannuation (including expenses re lated to defined benefit) 

Leave and other entitlements 

Separation and redundancies 

Other employee expe nses 

Total employee expenses - employees other than office 

Total employee expenses 

2018 

$ 

293,466 

56,172 

.31,422 

57,509 

438,569 

1 079,375 

175,459 

(78,674) 

118,090 

73,807 

1,368.057 

1,806,626 

2017 

$ 

262,449 

23,112 

41.388 

59.718 

386,667 

938,750 

90,211 

137,750 

79,238 

1,245,949 

1,632,616 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
19. Cash Flow Reconciliation and Information  
19a.    Cash Flow Reconciliation 

 

   

    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet to Cash Flow Statement: 

Cash and cash equivalents as per: 

Cash flow statement 

Balance sheet 

Difference 

Reconciliation of profit/(loss) to net cash from operating 
activities: 

Proflt/(loss) for the year 

Adjustments for non-cash items 

Depreciation 

Fair value movements in lnvestment property 

Gam on d1sposal of assets 

Actuarial gams/(losses) recognised in equity on defined benef1t plan 

Changes in assets/liabilities 

Change in accrued interest income 

Change in prepayments 

Change in sundry debtors 

Change in pension asset/ (hability) 

Change m trade and o ther payables 

Change in provisions and employee benefits 

Net cash (used by)/from operating activities 

2018 

$ 

1.253,269 

1.253,269 

2018 

$ 

3,412,255 

l(JQ,290 

(4,210,616) 

(3,175) 

80,700 

17,969 

(49,893) 

102,405 

120,185 

78,614 

(47.25:::,J 

(398,519) 

2017 

$ 

925,867 

925,867 

2017 

$ 

2,472,868 

100,961 

(1,218,600) 

236,470 

14,425 

10,860 

(79,952) 

(231,053) 

(78,720) 

25,370 

1,252,629 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

19. Cash Flow Reconciliation and Information (continued) 
19b.    Cash Flow Information 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2018 2017 

$ $ 
Cash inflows 
Cash receipts from o ther reporting urnts 

SDA New castle 565,498 452.730 

SDA New South Wales 2,323502 1,925 997 

SDA Queensland 1,382996 1,174,961 

SDA So uth Australia 1.077,618 924,561 

SDA Tasmania 231,288 193,783 

SDA Victoria 1,876,755 1,530,736 

SDA Western Australia 1,012,578 828,330 

Total cash inflows 8,475,235 7,031,098 

Cash ouflows 
Cash paid to o ther reporting units 

SDA Newcastle 75,099 1,638 

SDA New South Wales 18,960 5,472 

SDA Queensland 18,665 1,754 

SDA South AustralLa 3,032 

SDA Tasmania 

SDA Victoria 77,386 78,388 

SDA Western Australia 11,570 3,965 

Total cash outflows 201,680 94,249 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
20. Contingent Liabilities, Assets and Commitments  

 

  

 
21.         Related Party Disclosures 

 

Operating lease commitments-as lessor 
The Association leases out its investment property (see note 15a) under operating leases. The future mirnmum lease 
income under non-cancellable leases are as follows 

Within one year 

After one year but not more than five years 

After five years 

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties 

2018 

$ 

1,244958 

1,781,173 

3,026,131 

2017 

$ 

1.341.913 

3,026,131 

4,368,044 

All transactions Wlth related parties are made on terms equiva lent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. 

Outstanding balances for all transactions at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. 
There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the year ended 30 

June 2018, the association has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties 
and declared person or body (2017 $Nil) This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial 
position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates. 

Branches 
The Association received from its branches the following affilia tion fees 

Affiliation fees 

2018 2017 
$ $ 

SDA Newcastle 402,345 389,718 

SDA New South Wales 1,633,283 1,705,343 

SDA Queensland 1.000,253 1,035,089 

SDA South Australia 764,533 779,899 

SDA Tasmania 173,894 173,751 

SDA Victona 1.301,778 1.341,155 

SDA Western Australia 740,064 742,327 

6,016,150 6,167,282 
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21.         Related Party Disclosures (continued) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Branches (continued) 

The Association received from its branches t he following expense reimbursements: 

2018 ACTUIR Penalty No One IT- Other IT - TOTAL 
Campaign Rate Deserves A Workit Intranet 

Levy Campaig Serve App 
n Campaign 

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

SDA Newcastle 67.120 34,252 5,901 177 4,294 111.744 

S0A New South Wale s 282.620 144.280 24,847 137 09 18 081 483,537 

SDA Oueensland 150,248 77.164 13,209 6.783 9,612 257,016 

SDA South Australia 131,884 38,815 11,595 24,389 8,437 215,120 

SOA Tasmania 24,361 7.407 2,142 899 1,559 36,368 

SDA Victoria 238,332 121306 20,954 8,524 15,247 404,363 

SDA Western Australia 105,435 55,051 9,270 3,960 6,745 180,461 

1,000,000 478,275 87,918 58,441 63,975 1,688,609 

2017 ACTUIR Penalty No One IT- Other IT - TOTAL 
Campaign Rate Deserves A Workit Intranet 

Levy Campaig Serve App 
n Campaign 

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

SDA Newcastle 15,697 164 5,994 21,855 

SDA New South Wales 15,879 4,430 25,254 45,563 

SDA Queensland 15,524 3,966 13,567 33,057 

SDA So uth Australia 30.736 17,949 11,926 60.611 

SDA Tasmania 139 2,276 2.415 

SDA Vic toria 28.827 412 21.185 50,424 

SDA Western Australia 902 9,798 10,700 

106,663 27,962 90,000 224,62S 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
21.         Related Party Disclosures (continued) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Branches (continued) 

The amounts paid or payable. by the Assoc1atton to tts branches for expenses incurred on its behalf: 

2018 

SDA Newcastle 

Meeting expenses 

Delegates expenses 

Le gai costs (litigation) 

SDA New South Wales 

Admmistration expenses (office supplies) 

Delegates expenses 

Meeting expenses 

Other expenses (motor vehicle running costs) 

SDA Queensland 

Delegates expenses 

Meetinq expenses 

SDA South Australia 

Delegate expenses 

SDA Victoria 

Pe rsonnel expenses (reimbursement of Victorian payroll tax) 

Meeting Expe nses 

SDA Western Australia 

Fe deral Branch - Delegates expenses 

State Vnton - Delegate expenses 

$ 

34,3.52 

114 

33.807 

670 

16,334 

1,684 

16,300 

Z,020 

75551 

1,098 

10,362 

2017 

$ 

1,489 

1,967 

640 

2,367 

1.595 

2.756 

73,822 

2,737 

3,605 

The amounts owe d to \ts branches at 30 June 2018 by the Association are include d in payables to other reporting urnts m Note 16 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

21. Related Party Disclosures (continued) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Affiliates 

The amounts paid or payable by the Association to tts afflliates for expenses incurred on its behalf: 

ACTU 

Affiliation fees paid 

JR Campaign Levy 

Legal expenses reimbursed 

Meeting expenses. - attendance at conferences, forums & trmrnng 

Campaigning - Advertising Campaigns 

Union Network International (UNI) 

Affil\ation fees paid 

Donat\ons - UNI-APRO Activities Fund 

ALP National Secretariat 

Meeting expenses 

ALPNSW 

Donat\on - Federal Campaign.Organiser Salaries 

WA Labor 

Donation - Federal Swan Campaign 

2018 

$ 

1,357.551 

2..000.0QO 

14,841 

776,842 

100 

69.750 

46.500 

2017 

$ 

1,368,911 

2,000 

4,844 

50,000 

726.128 

129,546 

The Association received trust distribution income of $99,842 (2017 $149,186) from the ACTV as an affiliate In accordance with 

the ACTU ·constitution, Rules and Standing Orders· this was acquitted by the ACTU as add1t1onal aff1liat1on fees and is mcluded 

above. 

There were no amounts owed to its affiliates at 30 June 2018 by the Association. 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

21. Related Party Disclosures (continued) 

 
 
 
 

Other related parties 

Key management personnel 

The following were key management personnel of the Association during the financial year 

Name 

Joseph de Bruyn 

Michael Donovan 

Gerard Dwyer 

Ju lia Fox 

Bernie Smith 

Paul Griffin 

Barbara Nebart 

Soma Romeo 

Chris Gazenbeek 

Peter O'Keeffe 

Position 

Officer - National President 

Officer - National Vice-President 

Officer - National Secretary-Treasurer 

Officer - National Assistant Secretary 

National Executive Member 

National Executive Member 

National Executive Member 

National Executive Member 

National Executive Member 

National Executive Member 

Key management personnel remuneration 

The National Secretary-Treasurer and National Assistant Secretary are salaried employees of the Association with contributions 

made for them to a post -employment defined beneftt superannuation fund. The Associat ion also provtdes m otor vehicles and 

parking to the National Presiden t, National Secretary-Treasurer and National Assistant Secretary, and accommodation to the 

Nattonal Secretary-Treasurer when travelling to the registered National Office in Melbourne. The National Vice-President receives 

an honoranum. As the National Executive Members are not pmd by the Assoctation, there are only 4 remunerated officer holders 

o f the Association 

The Association pays or reimburses travel, accommodation and m eal allowances for the National Officers and the National 

Execut ive Members whilst attending National Council and/or National Executive m eetings or performing other Association duties 

The National Officers and National Execu tive Members are allow ed to keep any frequent flyer points or rewards earned as a result 

of such travel, the value of which cannot be determined. 

Key managem ent personnel compensation to the National Officers comprised: 

2018 2017 

$ $ 
Short-term employee benefits 563,105 541.927 

Post-employment benefits 61,198 59,344 

Other long term benefits 7,268 13,604 

631,571 614,875 

Note 17 discloses liabilities for annual leave and long service leave for office holders 
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21. Related Party Disclosures (continued) 

Other related parties (continued) 

Key management personnel remuneration (continued) 

The remuneration by officer comprised: 
2018  

 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
  

 
  

(4 months) 

Total 

 

$ $ $ $ $ $ 

Short-term employee benefits 

 Salary (including annual leave taken)  - -  - 293,466 

Honorarium & gifts  -  - - - 3,500 

Annual leave accrued  - -  - 7,826 

REST Director Fees - -  - - 153,425 

Non-monetary (accommodation, motor vehicle & 
parking) 

 -   - 104,888 

Total short-term employee benefits     - 563,105 

Post-employment benefits  

Superannuation-Defined Benefit  - -  - 44,020 

Superannuation (REST SG payments) - -   - 17,178 

Total post-employment benefits  -   - 61,198 

Other long-term benefits  

Long-service leave  - -  - 7,268 

Total other long-term benefits  - -  - 7,268 

  

Total     - 631,571 

       

2017 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
  

Total 

$ $ $ $ $ $ 

Short-term employee benefits 

Salary (including annual leave taken)  - -   283,420 

Honorarium & gifts  -  - -  7,500 

Annual leave accrued  - -   6,812 

REST Director Fees - -  - - 153,425 

Non-monetary (accommodation, motor vehicle & 
parking) 

 -    90,770 

Total short-term employee benefits      541,927 

Post-employment benefits 

Superannuation-Defined Benefit  - -   42,513 

Superannuation (REST SG payments) - -  -  16,831 

Total post-employment benefits  -    59,344 

Other long-term benefits 

Long-service leave  - -   13,604 

Total other long-term benefits  - -   13,604 

  

Total      614,875 

- - - - ■ - - - -- -
-- -- - --- -- -- - -- -- --- - - - ■ - - - -= - -

- -- -- I -- - - -- -- - -- -- - - -- - -- - -- -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
21. Related Party Disclosures (continued) 

22. Auditor’s Remuneration 

 

Other related parties (continued) 

Key management personnel remuneration {continued) 

Apart from the details disclosed in this note. no office r has entered into any material transactions with the Association since the 
end of the previous financial year and there were no material contracts involving officers· interests existing at year-end 

Superannuation 

No Contributions (2017: $90,327) were made to a post-employment defined benefit fund managed by the Retail Employees 

Superannualton Trust ('REST ') on behalf of salaried offtce holders and employees other than office holders. 

The Association recetved director fees of $54,795 (2017' $126,027) from REST for the servtces performed by nominated office holders 
and employees employed by the Association These director fees are included ln Other lncome in note 6 . Mr Joe de Bruyn. on 
being elected National President in October 2014 no longer receives a salary from the Association, therefore is entitled to personally 
recetve director fees for services as a REST director from November 2014, these are disclosed in short-term employee benefits \n 
key management personnel in Note 21. 

The directors personally receive• Superannuation Guarantee (SG) payments from REST for the above dJTector fees, these are 

disclosed in post-employment benefits for key management personnel in Note 21. 

Transactions with key management personnel and their close family members 

2018 

Loans/to from key management personnel 

Other transactions with key management personnel 

Information communications technology expenses pald to ITO Australia, 

a company owned by the brother-in-law of the National Secretary 

Audit services 

Auditors of the Associatlon 

KP./v/G Australia. 

Audit and review of financial reports 

Other services 

Auditors of the Associatlon 

kPMG Austra lia. 

Other assurance services 

TOTAL AUDITORS' REMUNERATION 

$ 

6,774 

6,774 

2018 

$ 

30,986 

30,986 

2,755 

2,755 

33,741 

2017 

$ 

120.000 

120,000 

2017 

$ 

30,709 

30,709 

2,693 

2,693 

33,402 
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23. Financial Instruments 
23a. Categories of Financial Instruments 

 

 
  23b. Net Income and Expense from Financial Assets 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

Financial assets 

Held - to -rnaturi(y 

Other financial assets 

Total held-to-maturity financial assets 

Loans and receivables.· 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Receivables 

Total loans and receivables 

Carrying amount of financial assets 

Financial liabilities 

Other iiabilit1es 

Trade and other payables 

Carrying amount of financial liabilities 

Held-to-maturity f111anc1al assets 

Interest revenue - other financial assets 

Total income from held-to-maturity financial assets 

Loans and receivables 

Interest revenue - cash and cash equivalents 

Total income from loans and receivables 

Total income from financial assets 

2018 

$ 

26,700.000 

26,700,000 

1,253,269 

620,672 

1.873.941 

28,573,941 

2018 

$ 

396,986 

396,986 

2018 

$ 

594,821 

594,821 

6,455 

6,455 

601,276 

2017 

$ 

27,500,000 

27,500,000 

925,867 

691,153 

1,617,020 

29,117,020 

2017 

$ 

318,372 

318,372 

2017 

$ 

645,753 

645,753 

6,566 

6,566 

652,319 
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23. Financial Instruments (continued)  
23c. Credit Risk 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Credit nsk is the nsk of financial loss to the Association if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet 
its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Association's receivables from customers and other financial 
assets 

Credit quality of financial instruments not past due or individually determined as impaired 

Not Past Due Past due or Not Past Due Past due or 
Nor Impaired impaired Nor Impaired impaired 

Held-to-matunty 2018 2018 2017 2017 
Other financial assets 26,700,000 27,500,000 
Loans and receivables.· 

Cash and cash equivalents 1,253,269 925,867 
Receivables 620,672 691,153 

Receivables 

The Association's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer or tenant Credit 
evaluations are performed on a\\ tenants of the investment property pnor to the signing of a lease agreement and security deposits 
are required by way of bank guarantees or cash, to be held for the term of a\\ leases None of the Association's receivables are past 
due (2017 ml) and based on histonc default rates and the mirnmal credit nsk the Association believes no impairment allowance is 
necessary None of the tenants were in arrears at the balance sheet date and there is no indication to management that any of the 
tenants present a significant credit nsk All receivables are with tenants in the Australian geographical region and therefore no 
impairment loss has been recogrnsed at balance date (2017: no impairment loss). 

Cash and cash equivalents 

The Group held cash and cash eqwvalents of SL253,269 at 30 June 2018 (2017 $925,867), which represents its maximum credit 
exposure on these assets. The cash and cash equivalents are held with bank and financial institution counterparties which are 
located in Australia, currently the CBA VVlth a current long term credit rating of Aa3 (Moody's Investor Services) . 

Other financial assets 

The other financial assets are all bank bills and term deposits issued by the Commonwealth Bank of Australia and the Association 
believes no impairment allowance is necessary 
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23. Financial Instruments (continued)  
23d. Liquidity Risk 

 

 
23e. Market Risk 

 
 
 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Association will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its finanoal liabilities 
that are settled by delivenng cash or another financial asset The Association's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure. as far 
as possible, that it Vv'lll always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, 
Vv'lthout incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Association's reputation 

The Association prepares budgets and cash flow forecasts, which assists it in monitonng cash flow requirements and optimising its 
cash return on investments. Typically the Association ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational 
expenses for a period of at least 120 days, the maximum term of its primary financial assets being term deposits This excludes the 
potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters. 

The carrying amount of the Association's financial liabilities 1s represented by trade and other payables (note 16) The carrying 
amounts approximate contractual cash flows and all are due m 3 months or less (2017 3 months or less) The Association has 
adequate financial assets to meet these liabilities and assesses llquidity nsk as minimal 

Contractual maturities for financial liabilities 2018 

< 1 year 1- 2, years 2- 5 years >5 years Total 
On Demand $ $ $ $ $ 

Trade and other payables 396.986 396,986 

Total 396,986 396,986 

Contractual maturities for financial liabilities 2017 
< 1 year 1- 2 years 2- 5 years >5 years Total 

On Demand $ $ $ $ $ 
Trade and other payables 318,372 318,372 

Total 318,372. 318,372. 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices. such as foreign exchange rates. interest rates and equity prices will affect the 
Association's income or the value of its holdings of finanoal instruments. The objective of market nsk management is to manage 
and control marke t risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return 

Currency risk 

The Association has limited exposure to currency risks on International Fund transactions (international affthation fees and 

donations) that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency, being the Australian dollar (AUD). The currencies 
in which these transactions primarily are denominated are Swiss Francs (CHF) , Singapore dollars (SGD) and American dollars (USO). 
The Association uses at its discretion forward exchange contracts (typically 1-3 months) to hedge its currency nsk. with matunty 
dates the same as the due dates of the Inte rnational Fund transactions. At reporting date there were no forward exchange contracts 
in place. 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
23. Financial Instruments (continued)  
23e. Market Risk (continued)

 

Interest rate risk 

The Association's interest rate nsk arises from its investments in bank bills, term deposits and cash management accounts Bank 

bills and term de posits are issued at fixed rates for terms of between 30 and 120 days. The Association maintains a num ber of 
different bank bills and term deposits maturing at regular intervals to smooth fluctuations in interest rates being offered. The maionty 

of cash reserves are held in term deposits, with cash management bank accounts (with variable interest rates) used to provide 
liquidity funds at call. 

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Association's interest-bearing financial instruments was 

Sensitivity analysis of the interest rate risk that the Association is exposed to for 2018 

Change in Effect on 

Risk risk variable Profit and Equity 
variable % loss 

$ $ 
Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents Interest rate 100bp increase 12.413 12,413 

Other financial assets Interest rate 100bp increase 239,847 239,847 

Sensitivity analysis of the interest rate risk that the Association is exposed to for 2017 

Change in Effect on 

Risk risk variable Profit and Equity 
variable % loss 

$ $ 
Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents Inte rest rate 100bp increase 10,764 10,764 

Other financial assets Interest rate 100bp increase 270,190 270,190 

Operational risk 

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide vanety of causes associated with the Association's processes, 

personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than credit, market and ltquidity risks such as those arising 

from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted s tandards of corporate behaviour. Operational risks arise from all 
of the Association's operations. The Association's objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial 

losses and damage to the Association's reputation with overall cost e ffectiveness and to avrnd control procedures that restnct 

irnhative and creativity 
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23. Financial Instruments (continued)  

23e. Market Risk (continued) 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

24. Controlled entities 

The primary responsibility for the development and implementa tion of controls to address operational risk 1s assigned to sernor 

management within the Association This responsibility is supported by the development of overall Association standards for the 
management of operational nsk in the following areas 

Requ1Tements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorisation of transactions; 

Requtrements for the reconollation and monitonng of transactions; 

Compliance with regulatory and other legal requtrem ents; 

Documentation of controls and procedures, 

Requtrements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and procedures to 
address the nsks identified, 

Requirements for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial action, 

Developmen t of contingency plans; 

Training and professional development; 

Ethical and business standards; 

Risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective. 

Capital management 

The Association's policy 1s to maintain a strong capital base so as to mmntain member, creditor and market confldence and to 

sustmn future development of the union's activities. The National Executive monitors the return on capital and seeks to maintain a 

conservative position between higher returns and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position There were 
no changes in the Association's approach to capital management during the year. and the Association is not subject to externally 

imposed capital requtrements 

Parent entity 

The Association compnses the Shop, Dtstnbutive and Allied Employees' Association National Account and the International Fund. 

Controlled Entity 

Ordinary shares 

WT Travel Pty Ltd 

2018 

% 

100 

2017 

% 

100 

WT Travel Pty Ltd, an Australian controlled entity, was purchased by the Shop Distributive and Allied Employees' Association 

National Executive on 30 September 1993. It formerly traded as a travel agency, but is currently a dormant Association Given WT 
Travel is a dormant Association and its results and financial position at 30 June 2018 are nil, consolidated accounts are not prepared. 
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25. Fair Value Measurement 
25a.  Financial Assets and Liabilities 

 

25b.  Financial and non-financial assets and liabilities fair value hierarchy  

 

 

26. Section 272 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Management of the Association assessed that the fair values of cash, receivables, trade payables, and other current liabilities 
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term matunties of these instruments 

The following table provides an analysis of financial and non-financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, by fair 
value hierarchy. 

Fair value hierarchy - 30 June 2018 

Assets measured at fair value 

Investment property 

Total assets measured at fair value 

Fair value hierarchy - 30 June 2017 

Assets measured at fair value 

Investment property 

Total assets measured at fair value 

Date of valuation 

30 June 2018 

Date of valuation 

30 June 2017 

Levell 
$ 

Levell 

$ 

Refer to note 15(b) for further detail over fair value measurement of the investment property 

Level 2 
$ 

Level 2 

$ 

Level 3 
$ 

24,000,000 

24,000,000 

Leve13 
$ 

19,750,000 

19,750,000 

In accordance with the reqwrements of the Fair Work (Registere d Organisations) Act 2009, the attention of members is drawn to 
the provisions of subsections (11 to (31 of section 272, which reads as follows 

Information to be provided to members or Commissioner 

1. A member of a reporting unit, or the Commissioner, may apply to the reporting unit for specified prescribed information 
in relation to the reporting unit to be made available to the person making the application. 

2. The application must be in wnttng and must specify the penod within which, and the manner m which, the information ts 
to be made available The penod must not be less than 14 days after the application is given to the reporting urnt 

3 A reporting unit must comply with an application made under subsection (1) 
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Liability limited by a scheme approved under 
Professional Standards Legislation. 

KPMG, an Australian partnership and a member firm of the KPMG 

network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG 

International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. 

Independent 

Auditor’s Report 

 

 

To the members of Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees' Association 

 

Opinion 

We have audited the Financial Report of Shop, 

Distributive and Allied Employees' Association (the 

Association). 

In our opinion, the accompanying Financial Report of 

the Association is in accordance with the Fair Work 

(Registered Organisations) Act 2009, including: 

• giving a true and fair view of the Association’s 

financial position as at 30 June 2018, and of its 

financial performance for the year then ended; 

• complying with Australian Accounting Standards; 

and 

• complying with other reporting requirements 

imposed by Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the Fair Work 

(Registered Organisations) Act 2009.  

The Financial Report comprises: 

• Statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018 

• Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 

income, Statement of changes in equity, and Statement 

of cash flows for the year then ended 

• Notes including a summary of significant accounting 

policies  

• Other explanatory information including the 

Committee of Management Statement, Certificate by 

National Secretary-Treasurer, Expenditure Report 

Required under Subsection 255(2A) and Officer 

Declaration Statement. 

 

 

 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards and the Fair Work (Registered 

Organisations) Act 2009. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our opinion. 

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the 

Financial Report section of our report. 

We are independent of the Association in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional 

and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to 

our audit of the Financial Report in Australia. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 

the Code. 

 

~ 
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Restriction on use  

The Financial Report has been prepared to assist the members of the Association in complying with the financial 

reporting requirements of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. 

As a result, the Financial Report and this Auditor’s Report may not be suitable for another purpose. Our opinion is 

not modified in respect of this matter. 

Our report is intended solely for the members of Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees' Association and should 

not be used by parties other than the members of Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees' Association. We disclaim 

any assumption of responsibility for any reliance on this report, or on the Financial Report to which it relates, to any 

person other than the members of Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees' Association or for any other purpose 

than that for which it was prepared. 

 

Other Information 

Other Information is financial and non-financial information in Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees' Association’s 

annual reporting which is provided in addition to the Financial Report and the Auditor’s Report. The National 

Executive are responsible for the Other Information.  

The Other Information we obtained prior to the date of this Auditor’s Report was the Operating Report.  

Our opinion on the Financial Report does not cover the Other Information and, accordingly, we do not express an 

audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Financial Report, our responsibility is to read the Other Information. In doing so, 

we consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Report or our knowledge 

obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

We are required to report if we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other Information, and based 

on the work we have performed on the Other Information that we obtained prior to the date of this Auditor’s 

Report we have nothing to report. 

 

Responsibilities of National Executive for the Financial Report 

The National Executive is responsible for: 

• preparing the Financial Report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting 

Standards and the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009;  

• implementing necessary internal control to enable the preparation of a Financial Report that gives a true and 

fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and 

• assessing the Association's ability to continue as a going concern and whether the use of the going concern basis 

of accounting is appropriate. This includes disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 

the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate Association or to cease operations, 

or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report 

Our objective is:  

• to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Report as a whole is free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;  

• to issue an Auditor’s Report that includes our opinion; and 

• to conclude on the appropriateness of the National Executive’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Association’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 

conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 

related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 

events or conditions may cause the Association to cease to continue as a going concern.  

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 

Australian Auditing Standards and the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. They are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 

could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the Financial 

Report. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report is located at the Auditing and 

Assurance Standards Board website at: http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_files/ar4.pdf. This description forms part 

of our Auditor’s Report.  

I declare that I am an auditor registered under the RO Act. 
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Going Concern  

I declare that, as part of the audit of the financial report for the financial year ended 30 June 2018, the National 

Executive’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the Shop, Distributive and Allied 

Employees’ Association’s financial report is appropriate. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Member of Institute of Charted Accountants #46581, dated 21 May 2002 

Registered Company Auditor - #394346, dated 1 February 2011 

Certificate of Public Practice with ICAA, dated 25 August 2010  

Registered Auditor – Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, #AA2017/16

~PMG 
KPMG 

e_ 
Partner 

Tower Two, Collins Square, 

727 Collins Street, Melbourne 

23 August 2018 
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Liability limited by a scheme approved under 
Professional Standards Legislation. 

KPMG, an Australian partnership and a member firm of the KPMG 

network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG 

International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. 

Lead Auditor’s Independence Declaration 

to the Members of the Shop, Distributive 

and Allied Employees’ Association 
 

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audit of Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees’ Association 

for the financial year ended 30 June 2018 there have been: 

i. no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Member of Institute of Charted Accountants #46581, dated 21 May 2002 

Registered Company Auditor - #394346, dated 1 February 2011 

Certificate of Public Practice with ICAA, dated 25 August 2010  

Registered Auditor – Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, #AA2017/16 

 

~ 

Antoni Cinanni 

Partner 

Tower Two, Collins Square, 

727 Collins Street, Melbourne 

23 August 2018 
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